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Hood’s Mill
Hood’s Mill Road

Summary:

Hoods Mill was originally constructed in 1845 by James Hood and John Grimes,
and was named after the family of the former. Gen. J. M. Hood, noted president of the
Western Maryland Railroad in the nineteenth century, was born and raised here. Part
of the reasoning for the location of the mill certainly must have come from the
construction of the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad along the Patapsco Falls here. By
1862, a community had grown up around the mill, which was now owned by Dorsey &
Shepherd. There was a store, a post office, and a railroad station. By 1877, a school
had been added. The store was operated by J. T. McComas, who advertised ". . . Dry
Goods, Groceries, Boots, Shoes, Hats, Caps, Notions, and all goods usually kept in a
country store." By the early 1880’s, Winfield S. Robb had taken over the store and post
office, as well as serving as railroad and express agent. Most of the buildings in Hoods
Mill have disappeared, as has the original mill. The existing mill was probably rebuilt on
the original foundations in the early twentieth century. As rebuilt, it was closer to a
grain elevator than a traditional grist mill.



Survey No.Carr-33

MARYLAND INVENTORY O/F

Maryland Historical Trust HISTORIC PROPERTIES Magi No.
State Historic Sites Inventory Form boE _yes _mo

1. Name (indicate preferred name)

historic Hood's Mill

and/or common

2. Location

street & number Hood's Mill Road ___not for publication
city, town Sykesville _X__ vicinity of congressional district
state Maryland county Carroll
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
—— district public _ .. occupied —__ agriculture _____museum
X building(s) X private __“* unoccupied ____ commercial ____park
_ structure —__both ____work in progress __ educational ____ private residence
___ site Public Acquisition Agcessible ___ entertainment ____ religious

__object ___in process . yes: restricted . government ____ scientific

—~- being considered ____ yes: unrestricted _ industrial transportation
4 not applicable __ no ___ military _X_ other: abandoned

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Jean R. Dickey
street & number 13850 Forsythe Road telephone no.:
city, town Sykesville state and zip code Maryland 21784

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Courthouse Annex liber 1133
street & number 55 North Court Street folio 533
city, town Westminster state Maryland

6. Representation in Existing nistorical surveys

title

date — federal __state ___county ___ local

depository for survey records

city, town state




7. Description Survey No. (arr-33

Condition Check one Check one

___ excellent _X_ deteriorated ____ unaltered _X_ original site

- good ____ruins X __ altered —__ moved date of move
—— fair —___ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

Summary: Hood’s Mill is located on the north side of Hood’s Mill Road, just east of
Old Washington Road (Route 97) and north of the South Branch of the Patapsco River
on the southern border of Carroll County. The mill is a four-bay, two-story structure
with rubble stone on the bottom half of the first story and rock-faced concrete block
above, and German siding on the second story. It has a gable roof with an east-west
ridge. On the west side of the mill is a tall reinforced concrete tower that is oval in
plan. On the east side of the tower is a short enclosed bridge connecting it with the
second story of the mill. It has German siding. On the east end of the mill is a two-
story addition with CMU'’s on the first story and German siding on the second. The
mill is deteriorated, overgrown, and abandoned.

Resource Count: 1

Hood’s Mill is located on the north side of Hood’s Mill Road, just east of Old
Washington Road (Route 97) and north of the South Branch of the Patapsco River on
the southern border of Carroll County. The mill is a four-bay, two-story structure with
rubble stone on the bottom half of the first story and rock-faced concrete block above,
and German siding on the second story. It has a gable roof with an east-west ridge and
inverted-V-seam metal. The south elevation has stone infill in openings in the west and
east-center bays of the stone section. There is also a wood-louver vent near the ground
on the east bay. The west-center bay has a door of vertical German siding in the block
section. This section also has boarded-up openings in the west, east center, and east
bays. The second story has four 1/1 sash; the eastern one is partly missing. Centered
on the ridge is a wood machinery housing with German siding on the north and south
elevations, asphalt shingles on the east and west, a shed roof, and an opening on the
south.

On the west side of the mill is a tall reinforced concrete tower that is oval in

plan. It has a nine-light metal sash at the top of the north and south elevations and a
door opening at the top of the east and west elevations. There is a steel ladder on the
east side. There are some remains of wood roof framing or sheathing on the top of the
tower, and visible inside the tower is a metal wheel with a belt that has cups on it. On
the east side of the tower is a short enclosed bridge connecting it with the second story
of the mill. It has German siding, a gable roof with asphalt shingles and an east-west
ridge, and the remains of a one-light sash in the north and south elevations.

On the east end of the mill is a two-story addition with CMU’s on the first story
and German siding on the second. It has a gable roof with inverted V-seam metal and
an east-west ridge. Centered on the first story of the south elevation is a boarded-up



8. Significance Survey No. Carr-33

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
____prehistoric _____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture ____ religion
_1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic ____conservation — law -—__science
- 1500-1599 ___ agriculture —___economics — literature __ sculpture
__1600-1699 __X architecture ___ education —_ military ___ social/
—1700-1799 ___ art X engineering —___ music humanitarian
1800-1899 ___ commerce —_ exploration/settlement ____ philosophy - theater
I 1900- ____ communications X industry — politics/government ____ transportation
_____invention — other (specity)
Specific dates Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: __ A XB __C _D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A _ B _C _ D _E _F _G
Level of Significance: __national x state _ local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

Hoods Mill was originally constructed in 1845 by James Hood and John Grimes,
and was named after the family of the former. Gen. J. M. Hood, noted president of the
Western Maryland Railroad in the nineteenth century, was born and raised here. Part
of the reasoning for the location of the mill certainly must have come from the
construction of the Baltimore and Ohio Railroad along the Patapsco Falls here. By
1862, a community had grown up around the mill, which was now owned by Dorsey &
Shepherd. There was a store, a post office, and a railroad station. By 1877, a school
had been added. The store was operated by J. T. McComas, who advertised ". . . Dry
Goods, Groceries, Boots, Shoes, Hats, Caps, Notions, and all goods usually kept in a
country store." By the early 1880’s, Winfield S. Robb had taken over the store and post
office, as well as serving as railroad and express agent. Most of the buildings in Hoods
Mill have disappeared, as has the original mill. The existing mill was probably rebuilt
on the original foundations in the early twentieth century. As rebuilt, it was closer to a
grain elevator than a traditional grist mill.

Geographic Organization: Piedmont

Chronological/Development Period: Industrial-Urban Dominance, A.D. 1870-1930
Historic Period Themes: Architecture, Industry

Resource Types: Mill, rural vernacular

KS/1h:11-1-93:Carr33.sig



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. (arr-33

1862 & 1877 maps
Scharf, History of Western Maryland, p. 882

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property __57.75 ac.

Quadrangle name ___Woodbine Quadrangle scale _1.24000
UTM References ({o NOT complete UTM references
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Verbal boundary description and justification
List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries
state code county code
state code county code
11. Form Prepared By
name/title ‘enneth M. Short, Historic Planner
organization Carroll County Planning Department date November 10, 1993
street & number 225 North Center Street telephone (410) 857-2145

city ortown Westminster state Maryland

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST Survey No. CARR-33
STATE HISTORIC SITES INVENTORY FORM

Description (continued) Section 7 Page 2

opening, while above it on the second story is a one-light sash. The lower half of the
first story of the east elevation of the addition is rubble stone. It is banked into the hill
on the north side, as is the mill itself. The north elevation of the addition has two
boarded-up openings, beaded-edge vertical board double doors, an exterior CMU
chimney and a one-light sash. The north elevation of the mill is partly banked, and the
first story has a boarded-up opening, a bricked-in opening and a boarded-up opening,
going from east to west. The second story has beaded-edge-and-center vertical board
double doors, with the remains of a pent roof, on each end. There is a 1/1 sash in the
center and a boarded-up opening east of the west door. The mill is deteriorated,
overgrown, and abandoned.

KS/1h:11-1-93:Carr33.des
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